
                                                       

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  

 
 

21 February 2024 
 

7.00 pm 
 

Rooms 201 and 202, Annexe, Town Hall, 
Watford 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact 
Jodie Kloss  
democraticservices@watford.gov.uk  
01923 278376 
 
For information about attending meetings please visit the council’s website. 
 
 
 

Publication date: 13 February 2024 

mailto:democraticservices@watford.gov.uk
https://www.watford.gov.uk/decisions-made/council-meetings/2


 

 

Committee Membership 
 
Councillor A Grimston (Chair) 
Councillor F Ezeifedi (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors S Ahmed, M Devonish, P Hill, A Khan, P Kloss, L Nembhard MBE and T Osborn 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A - Open to the Public 
 
1. Apologies for Absence/Committee Membership  
 
2. Disclosure of interests (if any)  
 
3. Minutes  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2024 to be submitted and signed.  

 
4. Community Safety Partnership update  
 
 Representatives of the Community Safety Partnership to make a presentation to 

the committee.  
 

5. Social Housing Task Group final report (Pages 4 - 18) 
 
6. Call-in  
 
 To consider any executive decisions which have been called in by the requisite 

number of councillors. 
 

7. Executive Decision Progress Report (Pages 19 - 24) 
 
 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the latest edition of the Executive 

Decision Progress Report and consider whether any further information is 
required. 
 

8. Hertfordshire County Council's Health Scrutiny Committee  
 
 Councillor Grimston, the Council’s appointed representative to Hertfordshire 

County Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee, to provide an update. 
 
 

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=146&Year=0


 

 

9. Work Programme (Pages 25 - 28) 
 
 The scrutiny committee is asked to review the current version of the work 

programme and consider any additional areas councillors wish to scrutinise. 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting  
 
  Wednesday 13 March 2024, 7pm 

 



Part A  
 
Report to:  Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of meeting: Wednesday, 21 February 2024 
 
Report author: Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Title:   Social Housing Task Group final report 
 
 
1.0 Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the final report and 

recommendations of the Social Housing Task Group. The full report is attached as 
Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the report prior to it being 

sent to registered social housing providers. 
 
2.0 Risks 
 
2.1 No direct risks to the council have been identified as a result of the task group’s 

recommendations. 
 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 That the final report and recommendations of the task group be agreed and 

forwarded to relevant registered providers.  
 
 Further information: 
 Jodie Kloss 
 jodie.kloss@watford.gov.uk  
  
 Report approved by: Carol Chen, Group Head of Democracy and Governance 
 
4.0 Overview of the task group 
 
4.1 In February 2023 Overview and Scrutiny Committee invited Watford Community 

Housing to attend a meeting and provide an update on their response to damp and 
mould. Watford Community Housing are the largest registered provider of social 
housing in Watford. The committee recommended that a task group be established 
to consider repairs, damp and mould and tenant engagement across the social 
rented sector in Watford. 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



 
4.2 The task group was established by Overview and Scrutiny Committee in July 2023 

and comprised the following councillors: 
 Councillor Asif Khan (Chair) 
 Councillor Karen Clarke-Taylor 
 Councillor Marilyn Devonish 
 Councillor Penelope Hill  
 Councillor Amanda Grimston 
 
4.3 The task group met on four occasions, including two in-person evidence sessions 

with representatives of Watford Community Housing. Other providers submitted 
written evidence to the review. During the course of the review, the task group 
reviewed written evidence and discussed policies and procedures with witnesses.  

 
5.0 Implications 
 
5.1 Financial 
 
5.1.1 The Chief Finance Officer comments that there are no direct financial implications 

for Watford Borough Council arising from this report. 
 
5.2 Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer) 
 
5.2.1 The Group Head of Democracy and Governance comments that there are no legal 

implications in the report. 
 
5.3 Equalities, Human Rights and Data Protection 
 
5.3.1 There are no specific implications in this report. 
 
5.4 Staffing 
  
5.4.1 There are no staffing implications in this report.  
 
5.5 Accommodation 
  
5.5.1  There are no accommodation implications in this report. 
 
5.6 Community Safety/Crime and Disorder 
 
5.6.1 There are no community safety implications in this report. 
 
5.7 Sustainability 
  
5.7.1 There are no sustainability implications in this report.  

Page 5



 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Draft Social Housing Task Group report.  
 
Background papers 
 
No papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Social Housing 
 Task Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

February 2024 
  

Page 7



 

2 

 

Contents 
 
 
 

  Page 
   
   

 
Executive Summary 
 
Task Group members and witnesses 

 3 
 
4 

   
Recommendations   5 
   
Background to the task group  5 
   
Overview of the task group’s work  5 
   
Recommendations and comments  6 
   
Bibliography  8 
   
Appendix   
   

1. Task group terms of reference  10 
   
   

   
   
   
   
   

 
 

  

 
  

Page 8



 

3 

 

Executive Summary 
 
The task group recognises the vital role that registered providers play in delivering much-
needed affordable housing in the borough. The work to ensure a robust and urgent 
response to damp and mould issues in homes is imperative to protect the health of tenants.  
Recognising the challenging context that they are operating in, registered providers are 
nonetheless encouraged to make all necessary preparations to meet the incoming statutory 
requirements to meet these responsibilities.  Raising awareness among tenants and staff of 
causes, signs and related processes to address these issues remain fundamental.  
 
A multi-channel approach to communicating with all tenants, listening to their views and 
reporting back must remain the mainstay of registered providers’ engagement. Openness to 
feedback and responding as needed has also been demonstrated as fundamental. Formal 
engagement structures can also provide important opportunities for tenants to participate 
in decision-making, highlight the issues that matter to them and undertake relevant 
scrutiny.   
 
This report reflects the value of organisational cultures and processes which are tenant-
centric and focused on openness and compassion. These approaches increase tenant 
satisfaction, reduce complaints and protect the most vulnerable. They also create strong 
foundations for partnership working where opportunities and challenges are recognised and 
lead to continuous improvement. All registered providers are encouraged to continue to 
ensure that empathy and responsiveness remain central to their approach and that this is 
embedded at every level of the organisation.   
 
Task group members  
Councillor Asif Khan Chair, Councillor for Leggatts Ward 
Councillor Karen Clarke-Taylor  Councillor for Oxhey Ward 
Councillor Marilyn Devonish  Councillor for Central Ward 
Councillor Amanda Grimston   Councillor for Meriden Ward 
Councillor Penelope Hill   Councillor for Park Ward 
 
Officer support 
Jodie Kloss     Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Laura MacMillan    Democratic Services Officer 
 
Witnesses 
Peter Cogan Group Director of Customer Services, Watford 

Community Housing 
Helen Town Group Director of Property and Partnerships, 

Watford Community Housing 
 
Written submissions  Paradigm Housing and Sanctuary Housing 
  

Page 9



 

4 

 

Recommendations 
 
Property maintenance and repairs 

1. Establish clear guidelines for tenants and staff on responsibilities for different 
types of repairs. 
 

2. Ensure that repair works are categorised based on urgency and safety, taking 
tenant vulnerabilities into account, including mental health issues. 
 

3. Undertake proactive inspections, within the bounds of legal constraints, to 
identify common issues in certain types of property and to understand where 
vulnerabilities exist in order to support appropriate prioritisation.  
 

4. Undertake long-term planning of the cyclical maintenance programmes 
within housing stock, which reflect statutory requirements.  

 
Damp and mould 

5. Emphasise to staff and tenants the importance of addressing damp and 
mould issues promptly to protect tenant health. 
 

6. Implement a standard procedure for dealing with reports of damp and 
mould, ensuring prompt and effective action. 
 

7. Make necessary preparations in systems and processes to comply with the 
incoming Awaab’s Law, adapting, where needed, to the challenges of the 
current operating environment.  
 

Service Delivery and Satisfaction 
 

8. Conduct thorough reviews of the processes which result in dissatisfaction 
among tenants. 
 

9. Focus on continuous improvement in service delivery to meet and exceed 
tenant satisfaction targets. 

 
Tenant Engagement and Communication  
 

10. Develop strategies to engage with under-represented groups of tenants. 
 

11. Ensure all tenants are informed about how to report concerns effectively. 
 

12. Implement regular communication channels: 
 

a. to update and inform tenants and stakeholders about the progress 
and outcomes of initiatives and strategies. 

Page 10



 

5 

 

b. for tenants to provide feedback and participate in decision-making 
processes. 
 

Background to the task group 
 
Following the tragic death of two-year-old Awaab Ishak caused by prolonged exposure to 
mould in his home in Rochdale in 2020, there has been increased focus on damp and mould, 
particularly in the social rented sector.  
 
In light of this, in February 2023 Overview and Scrutiny Committee invited Watford 
Community Housing to attend a meeting and provide an update on their response to any 
damp and mould issues in their properties. Watford Community Housing are the largest 
registered provider of social housing in Watford. The committee recommended that a task 
group be established to consider repairs, damp and mould, and tenant engagement within 
the social rented sector in Watford.  
 
Overview of the task group’s programme of work 
 
The task group met four times between November 2023 and January 2024. At the initial 
meeting, members reviewed and discussed key background information.   
 
The task group then held two evidence sessions to which a number of the largest local 
registered providers of social housing were invited. Watford Community Housing attended 
these sessions with two other providers submitting responses to a questionnaire that had 
been circulated as an alternative. Overall, the task group received responses from registered 
providers who together supply 68% of the social rented homes in Watford. The task group is 
grateful to all the providers who contributed and particular thanks are extended to the team 
at Watford Community Housing for their time and thoughtful and open approach.  
 
During the first evidence session, the task group focused on repairs, damp and mould. 
Watford Community Housing’s presentation covered repairs and response to damp and 
mould, and tenant satisfaction. The task group discussed various ways providers could raise 
awareness about these issues, how all staff could be trained to identify and address damp 
and mould, and how vulnerable tenants could be supported.  
 
During the second evidence session, the task group considered tenant engagement and how 
residents in social rented properties were able to interact with their landlord. The 
presentation delivered by Watford Community Housing covered tenant engagement, 
response to tenant priorities, recent learning and action taken, digital exclusion, and 
complaints. 
 
At the final meeting, members considered their conclusions and recommendations.  
 
The task group scope is attached as appendix 1 to this report.  
 
Additional work was carried out by Democratic Services to inform the task group’s work and 
to produce this report.  

Page 11



 

6 

 

Recommendations and comments 
 
Recommendations 
 
The recommendations from this review are relevant to all social housing providers operating 
in Watford. The task group commends the good practice that was demonstrated in the 
course of this review. These recommendations capture this existing good practice as well as 
some areas for development to be considered.  
 
Property Maintenance and Repairs 

1. Establish clear guidelines for tenants and staff on responsibilities for different types 
of repairs. 
 

2. Ensure that repair works are categorised based on urgency and safety, taking tenant 
vulnerabilities into account, including mental health issues. 
 

3. Undertake proactive inspections, within the bounds of legal constraints, to identify 
common issues in certain types of property and to understand where vulnerabilities 
exist in order to support appropriate prioritisation.  
 

4. Undertake long-term planning of the cyclical maintenance programmes within 
housing stock, which reflect statutory requirements.  

 
Ensuring that homes remain in good order protects the living standards, health and 
satisfaction levels of tenants. Clear guidelines setting out who is responsible for addressing 
different types of issues benefits both tenants and landlords and manages expectations. All 
repairs must be assessed against criteria to ensure the safety of tenants and protecting the 
building. The task group particularly wanted to highlight the needs of those with 
vulnerabilities, including mental ill health, who might have different needs from other 
tenants. 

 
Registered providers should use their knowledge of their housing stock, and in particular 
any known issues with certain types of structures, to address any repairs and maintenance 
issues. Such inspections, carried out within the legal framework for entering tenants’ 
homes, will also assist with the identification of vulnerable tenants, including those who do 
not routinely grant access to the landlord, and for whom additional support might be 
beneficial.  

 
Rolling repairs programmes are welcomed to maintain the stock and protect against future 
repairs issues. Works focused on energy efficiency of homes are particularly welcome given 
the challenges of the cost-of-living and climate crises as well as helping to prevent damp and 
mould.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

7 

 

Damp and mould 

5. Emphasise to staff and tenants the importance of addressing damp and mould issues 
promptly to protect tenant health. 
 

6. Implement a standard procedure for dealing with reports of damp and mould, 
ensuring prompt and effective action. 
 

7. Make necessary preparations in systems and processes to comply with the incoming 
Awaab’s Law, adapting, where needed, to the challenges of the current operating 
environment. 
 

All landlords, including registered providers of social housing, should understand their 
responsibility to identify and address the underlying causes of damp and mould, including 
structural issues or inadequate ventilation.  
 
Training is vital; all representatives of registered providers who visit homes should be 
vigilant for signs of damp and mould and respond appropriately.  

 
Registered providers have already utilised a variety of ways to inform tenants about the 
signs, causes and ways of reporting any concerns around damp and mould. These have 
included magazine articles, the Big Door Knock, emails and leaflets.  

 
As with repairs, the vulnerabilities of tenants should be taken into account when a concern 
around damp and mould is raised.  

 
The government has launched a consultation on the introduction of Awaab’s Law which 
proposes introducing new strict time limits for social housing providers and force them to 
take swift action in addressing dangerous hazards such as damp and mould. 

 
It proposes new legal requirements for social landlords to investigate hazards within 14 
days, start fixing within a further 7 days, and make emergency repairs within 24 hours. 
Those landlords who fail can be taken to court where they may be ordered to pay 
compensation.   

 
The task group recognises that the requirements under this proposal are likely to be 
challenging for registered providers. The complexities of compliance in the current context, 
with labour and materials shortages, are recognised and registered providers are 
encouraged to adapt as needed to continue to maintain safe homes for their tenants.  

    
Service delivery and satisfaction 

8. Conduct thorough reviews of the processes which result in dissatisfaction among 
tenants. 
 

9. Focus on continuous improvement in service delivery to meet and exceed tenant 
satisfaction targets. 

Page 13



 

8 

 

Tenant satisfaction levels will be measured and published in the incoming Tenant 
Satisfaction Measures which all registered providers will be required to report from late 
2024.1 Similar satisfaction measures have also been the subject of internal key performance 
indicators among registered providers.  
 
Reviewing ways of working and implementing new processes to improve service delivery 
and increase tenant satisfaction is best undertaken as a collaborative approach. Tenants and 
partners should be engaged in these reviews and remain part of the work to maintain 
standards. A clear liaison person between registered providers and each local authority 
where they operate would be welcome. Learning from best practice elsewhere in the sector, 
particularly given the forthcoming statutory requirements, will remain an important tool in 
this regard. 

 
Data and feedback from tenants and partners should be used to monitor the effectiveness 
of implemented changes and policies and changes made accordingly.  
 
Tenant Engagement and Communication  

10. Develop strategies to engage with under-represented groups of tenants. 

11. Ensure all tenants are informed about how to report concerns effectively. 

12. Implement regular communication channels: 

 to update and inform tenants and stakeholders about the progress and outcomes 

of initiatives and strategies. 

 for tenants to provide feedback and participate in decision-making processes. 

Engaging with all tenants is vital to understanding their concerns and priorities. It is 
recommended that engagement methods, including formal tenant structures, are reviewed 
to ensure that they represent the diversity of tenants and of the housing stock. Strategies 
should then be developed to address any gaps.  

 
A multi-faceted approach to communicating with tenants, listening to their views and 
reporting back should remain a strength of local social housing providers. Such an approach 
will include letters and leaflets, emails, text messages, phone calls and face-to-face 
conversations. Registered providers are also encouraged to identify tenants who have not 
made contact for a long time and to follow up to ensure their wellbeing as well as to ensure 
that their home is in a good state of repair.  

 
The task group also underlined the importance of making information accessible to those 
for whom English is not their first language. Staff members who speak additional languages 
will be well-placed to support this approach.  
 

 

                                            
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-the-introduction-of-tenant-satisfaction-
measures/outcome/tenant-satisfaction-measures-summary-of-rsh-requirements-accessible  

Page 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-the-introduction-of-tenant-satisfaction-measures/outcome/tenant-satisfaction-measures-summary-of-rsh-requirements-accessible
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-the-introduction-of-tenant-satisfaction-measures/outcome/tenant-satisfaction-measures-summary-of-rsh-requirements-accessible


 

9 

 

The task group wishes to extend their thanks to all those who contributed to this review. It 
was a positive and thought-provoking process and was intended to provide a timely review 
of social housing provision in Watford.   

Page 15



 

10 

 

Bibliography/background papers 
 

 Report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee – New Scrutiny Task Group – Social 
Housing Task Group – July 2023 

 Housing Ombudsman Service - One year on follow up report: Spotlight on damp and 
mould – it’s not lifestyle 

 Overview of Tenant Satisfaction Measures 

 Various policy and process documents – Paradigm Housing 

 Various policy and process documents – Sanctuary Housing 

 Various policy and process documents and newsletters - Watford Community 
Housing  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=4305
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42607/New%20scrutiny%20task%20group%20-%20Housing.pdf
•%09https:/www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Damp-and-mould-follow-up-report-final-2.2.23.pdf
•%09https:/www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Damp-and-mould-follow-up-report-final-2.2.23.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/consultation-on-the-introduction-of-tenant-satisfaction-measures/outcome/tenant-satisfaction-measures-summary-of-rsh-requirements-accessible


 

11 

 

Appendix: 
Watford Borough Council Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Scrutiny Task Group Scope and Terms of Reference 
 

Scrutiny review title Tenants’ experiences in social housing  
 

Scrutiny proposer Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Details of specific 
area for review 

 Any interim data for tenant satisfaction measures 
programme (note first results to be published Autumn 
2024).  

 Responsiveness to repair requests. 

 Review of the damp and mould processes. 

 Effectiveness of Gateway structure, or similar tenant 
engagement processes, in engagement and tenant-led 
scrutiny. 
 

Why this has been 
proposed for 
review, including 
the council 
priorities it supports 

 WCH owns and manages over 5,300 homes in Watford and 
other providers also own many units.   

 National issues around damp and mould. 

 Understand tenants’ views and how these are taken 
forward.  
 

Purpose / objectives 
of the review, 
including key 
questions 

 How well are tenants’ views understood and acted upon? 

 How successful are the tenant-engagement structures and 
processes? 

 How effectively are complaints dealt with? 

 How robust are the measures in place to respond to issues 
with damp and mould? 
 

Any areas excluded 
from the scope  

 Individual casework.   

Desired outcomes / 
indicators of success  

 A wider understanding of the context of the social rented 
sector in Watford.  

 An understanding of complaints processes. 

 An understanding of repairs processes. 

 An understanding of the response to issues with damp and 
mould within the social rented sector. 

 Developing recommendations which contribute to resident 
satisfaction in the social rented sector.  
 

Timescale and key 
dates, including 
proposed meeting 
format 

 Task group to be established in July 2023. 

 Consider a scrutiny in a day approach, October 2023.  

 To go to WBC Cabinet and the social housing providers in 
January 2024.  
 

Page 17



 

12 

 

Key departmental 
lead officer 

 Justine Hoy, Associate Director of Housing and Wellbeing 

 Liz Smale, Housing Strategy Officer 

 Joanna Harding, Environmental Health Manager 
 

Witnesses  Representatives of WCH and other registered providers 

 Cabinet member for Housing 
 

What activities 
need to be taken to 
achieve the 
outcomes? 
 

 Reviewing background briefing on social housing landscape 
in Watford. 

 Review of relevant WCH and other providers’ policies on: 
repairs, housing maintenance complaints, management of 
damp and mould issues.  

 Review of feedback from tenant engagement structures. 
 

Key policies / 
documentation / 
baseline 
information needed 

 Background briefing on establishment of WCH and how the 
relationship is managed.  

 Briefing on tenants’ satisfaction measures 

 WCH Customer Experience Strategy 

 WCH complaints and escalation process 
 

Any other sources 
of evidence (e.g., 
site visit) 

 Any previous consultations run with social tenants. 

Risks  Lack of involvement of social housing providers in working 
with local councillors to address residents’ needs and 
concerns.  

 Lack of opportunity to ensure robustness to damp and 
mould agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 18



February 2024 

 
 

 
 

Executive Decision Progress Report 
 

From May 2023 
 

 
 

Contact Officer: Jodie Kloss 
Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 
Telephone: 01923 278376 

 
Email: democraticservices@watford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item
 7

mailto:democraticservices@watford.gov.uk


February 2024 

All officer decisions are available on the Officer Decision Register or on the full Decision Register.  Only key decisions are shown below.  Further information about 
forthcoming decisions is available online.  
 

Date key decision is due to be 
taken and by whom 

Proposed decision published 
in the Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

Details of the proposed 
decision  

Does the decision contain 
any exempt information 
requiring it to be considered 
in private and what are the 
reasons for this? 

Status 

5 June 2023 
Cabinet 
 

3 May 2023 Business Intelligence Strategy 
 
Lead officer:  
Liam Hornsby 
 

No Approved by Cabinet 5 June 
2023 
 

5 June 2023 
Cabinet 
 

23 May 2023 Conservation Areas 
Management Plan - Actions 
2023-26 
 
Lead officer:  
Sian Finney-MacDonald 
 

No 
 

Approved by Cabinet 5 June 
2023 
 

10 July 2023 
Cabinet 
 

3 May 2023 Community Engagement and 
Participation Strategy 
 
Lead officer: 
Natalie Frost 
 

No Approved by Cabinet 10 July 
2023 

 

10 July 2023 
Cabinet 
 

9 June 2023 Watford’s Place Brand and 
Narrative 
 
Lead officer: 
Kathryn Robson 
 

No Approved by Cabinet 10 July 
2023 

 

Page 20

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgListOfficerDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&BAM=0
http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1
http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=0
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=26944&PlanId=151&RPID=501527072
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4588
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4588
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4589
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4589


February 2024 

Date key decision is due to be 
taken and by whom 

Proposed decision published 
in the Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

Details of the proposed 
decision  

Does the decision contain 
any exempt information 
requiring it to be considered 
in private and what are the 
reasons for this? 

Status 

4 September 2023 
Cabinet 

3 August 2023 Communications and 
Conversations Strategy 2023-
26 
 
Lead officer: 
Kathryn Robson, Marie Power 

No Approved by Cabinet 4 
September 2023 

 

4 September 2023 
Cabinet 

3 August 2023 Letting at Croxley Business 
Park 
 
Lead officer: 
Peter Hall 

Yes on the grounds that it 
contains commercially 
sensitive information.  

Approved by Cabinet 4 
September 2023 

 

4 September 2023 
Cabinet 
 

16 August 2023 UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
Phase 2 Proposals 
 
Lead officer: 
Cherie Norris 

No Approved by Cabinet 4 
September 2023 
 

2 October 2023 
Cabinet 
 

3 August 2023 SW Herts Joint Strategic Plan 
Vision Report 
 
Lead officer: 
Jack Green 

No  Approved by Cabinet 2 
October 2023 

 

2 October 2023 and 17 
October 2023 
Cabinet and Council 
 

29 September 2023 Annual Review of Fees and 
Charges 
 
Lead officer: 
Hannah Doney 

No Approved by Cabinet 2 
October 2023 
 
Approved by Council 17 
October 2023 
 

 

Page 21

https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27790&PlanId=153&RPID=501574156
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27790&PlanId=153&RPID=501574156
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27790&PlanId=153&RPID=501574156
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4590
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27798&PlanId=153&RPID=501574159
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27798&PlanId=153&RPID=501574159
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4590
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27901&PlanId=154&RPID=501587770
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27901&PlanId=154&RPID=501587770
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4590
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27379&PlanId=153&RPID=501574165
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27379&PlanId=153&RPID=501574165
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4591
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28179&PlanId=155&RPID=501606227
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28179&PlanId=155&RPID=501606227
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4591
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=4598


February 2024 

Date key decision is due to be 
taken and by whom 

Proposed decision published 
in the Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

Details of the proposed 
decision  

Does the decision contain 
any exempt information 
requiring it to be considered 
in private and what are the 
reasons for this? 

Status 

30 October 2023 
Cabinet 

29 September 2023 Voluntary Sector 
Commissioning Framework 
 
Lead officer: 
Semeta Bloomfield 

No Approved by Cabinet 30 
October 2023 

 

30 October 2023 
Cabinet 

29 September 2023 Continuous Improvement 
Framework 
 
Lead officer: 
Liam Hornsby 

No Approved by Cabinet 30 
October 2023 

 

30 October 2023 
Cabinet 

29 September 2023 Community Engagement and 
Participation Strategy 
 
Lead officer: 
Natalie Frost 

No Approved by Cabinet 30 
October 2023 

 

30 October 2023 
Cabinet 

16 October 2023 Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Policy 
 
Lead officer – 
Christella Menson 

No Approved by Cabinet 30 
October 2023 
 

27 November 2023 
Cabinet 
 

27 October 2023 Authority Monitoring Report  
 
Lead officer –  
Thomas Shaw 

No Approved by Cabinet 27 
November 2023 

 

27 November 2023 
Cabinet 
 

27 October 2023 Extension of Bike Share 
Contract 
 
Lead officer –  
Paul Stacey 

Yes, part exempt on the 
grounds that it contains 
commercially sensitive 
information. 

Approved by Cabinet 27 
November 2023 

 

Page 22

https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28265&PlanId=155&RPID=501606252
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28265&PlanId=155&RPID=501606252
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4592
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28011&PlanId=155&RPID=501606255
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28011&PlanId=155&RPID=501606255
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4592
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27988&PlanId=155&RPID=501606262
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27988&PlanId=155&RPID=501606262
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4592
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28457&PlanId=156&RPID=501624375
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28457&PlanId=156&RPID=501624375
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4592
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28492&PlanId=156&RPID=501624379
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4593
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28510&PlanId=156&RPID=501624381
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4593


February 2024 

Date key decision is due to be 
taken and by whom 

Proposed decision published 
in the Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

Details of the proposed 
decision  

Does the decision contain 
any exempt information 
requiring it to be considered 
in private and what are the 
reasons for this? 

Status 

27 November 2023 
Cabinet 
 

27 October 2023 Community Asset Strategy 
 
Lead officer – 
Peter Hall 

No Approved by Cabinet 27 
November 2023 

 

After 19 January 2024 
Mayoral delegated decision 

16 November 2023 Approval of s.106 Expenditure 
to Deliver Social Rented 
Housing 
 
Lead officer: 
Laura Marland 

No  

5 February 2024 
Cabinet 
 

5 January 2024 LABV Watford Riverwell 
Business Plan 2023-2025 
 
Lead officer: Lauren Sharkey 

Yes, part exempt on the 
grounds that it contains 
commercially sensitive 
information. 

Approved by Cabinet 5 
February 2024 
 

5 February 2024 
Cabinet 
 

11 January 2024 Breakspeare School CIL bid 
 
Lead officer: Ellen Higginson 

No Approved by Cabinet 5 
February 2024 
 

5 February 2024 
Cabinet 
 

12 January 2024 Long Lease Disposal of 
Ashington's Car Park, Lady's 
Close 
 
Lead officer: Peter Hall 

Yes, part exempt on the 
grounds that it contains 
commercially sensitive 
information. 

Approved by Cabinet 5 
February 2024 
 

4 March 2024 
Cabinet 
 

9 June 2023 Collaboration and Commercial 
Strategy 
 
Lead officer: 
Carol Chen 
 

No  

Page 23

https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28503&PlanId=156&RPID=501624383
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4593
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28734&PlanId=157&RPID=501656880
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28734&PlanId=157&RPID=501656880
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28734&PlanId=157&RPID=501656880
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28951&PlanId=158&RPID=501721777
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28951&PlanId=158&RPID=501721777
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4595
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29151&PlanId=159&RPID=501744524
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4595
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29058&PlanId=159&RPID=501744526
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29058&PlanId=159&RPID=501744526
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29058&PlanId=159&RPID=501744526
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4595
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27156&PlanId=152&RPID=501530934
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=27156&PlanId=152&RPID=501530934


February 2024 

Date key decision is due to be 
taken and by whom 

Proposed decision published 
in the Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

Details of the proposed 
decision  

Does the decision contain 
any exempt information 
requiring it to be considered 
in private and what are the 
reasons for this? 

Status 

4 March 2024 
Cabinet 
 

8 December 2023 A review of fines for fixed 
penalty notices 
 
Lead officer: Nick Egerton 

No  

4 March 2024 
Cabinet 
 

2 February 2024 SLM contract 
 
Lead officer: Paul Stacey 

Yes on the grounds that it 
contains commercially 
sensitive information. 

 

4 March 2024 
Cabinet 
 

2 February 2024 Croxley Park Business Plan 
2024-25 
 
Lead officer: Peter Hall  

Yes on the grounds that it 
contains commercially 
sensitive information. 
 

 

4 March 2024 
Cabinet 
 

2 February 2024 West Herts Crematorium Joint 
Committee 
 
Lead officer: Carol Chen 

No  

 

Page 24

https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28890&PlanId=157&RPID=501656878
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=28890&PlanId=157&RPID=501656878
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29440&PlanId=159&RPID=501744528
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29438&PlanId=159&RPID=501744535
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29438&PlanId=159&RPID=501744535
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29421&PlanId=159&RPID=501744537
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=29421&PlanId=159&RPID=501744537


December 2023 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

2023/2024 draft work programme 
 

Date Publishing Topics 
 

Type of item Speakers 

21 June 13 June  OSC work programme 
2023/24 
 

 Customer Experience 
Strategy 

 

 Report-it update 
 

 Scrutiny business 
 
 

 Service 
performance 
 

 Service 
performance 
 

 Jodie Kloss (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 Liam Hornsby (Associate Director of Corporate and 
Customer Services), Michelle Carty (CSC Operations) 

 
 

 Lee Anderson (Digital Improvement Manager) 

19 July 11 July 
 

 Council Plan and 
performance update 
(Quarter 4 2022/23) 
 
 

 Establishment of task 
group - housing 

 

 Performance and 
delivery 
monitoring 
 
 

 Review of outside 
organisations 

 Liam Hornsby (Associate Director of Corporate and 
Customer Services), Lee Pound (Executive Head of HR 
and OD), Claire Dow (Intelligence, Performance and 
Improvement Lead) 
 

 Jodie Kloss (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 
 

20 September 12 
September 

 Council Plan and 
performance update 
(Quarter 1 2023/24) 
 
 

 Performance and 
delivery 
monitoring 
 
 
 

 Liam Hornsby (Associate Director of Corporate and 
Customer Services), Lee Pound (Executive Head of 
HR and OD), Claire Dow ((Intelligence, Performance 
and Improvement Lead) 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item
 9



December 2023 

 Spotlight on service 
delivery – waste and 
recycling.  

 

 Local response to the 
cost-of-living crisis 

 
 

 Service 
performance 

 
 

 Review of outside 
organisations and 
partnerships  

 Associate Director of Environment and Service 
Delivery Leads 

 
 

 Representatives from Citizens’ Advice, W3RT and 
Elim Church 

 

18 October 10 October  SLM contract update  
 
 
 
 

 Executive-Scrutiny 
protocol 
 

 Service 
performance 
 
 
 

 Scrutiny business 

 Paul Stacey (Associate Director of Environment), 
Semeta Bloomfield (Community Commissioning 
Lead), Julietta Federico (Contract and Relationship 
Manager) 

 

 Jodie Kloss (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 
 

15 November 7 November  Update on hospital 
development 
 
 

 Health integration 
 
 
 

 Watford Business Park 
 
 

 
 

 Review of outside 
organisations and 
partnerships 
 

 Service review 
 
 
 

 Service review 
 

 
 

 

 Representatives from West Herts Teaching Hospital 
Trust 
 
 

 Donna Nolan (Chief Executive), Toby Hyde (West 
Herts Teaching Hospital Trust) 

 
 

 Lauren Sharkey (Property Development Project 
Manager), Peter Hall (Associate Director of Property 
and Asset Management) 
 
 

Page 26



December 2023 

13 December 5 December  Council Plan and 
performance update 
(Quarter 2 2023/24) 

 
 

 Spotlight on service 
delivery – street 
cleansing 
 

 Performance and 
delivery 
monitoring 
 

 

 Service 
performance 

 

 Liam Hornsby (Associate Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services), Claire Dow (Intelligence, 
Performance and Improvement Lead) 
 

 Associate Director for Environment and Service 
delivery leads  

 

31 January 23 January  Update on 
recommendations of 
Sustainability Strategy 
Task Group 
 

 Performance of the high 
street 
 

 Scrutiny business 
 

 
 
 

 Review of outside 
organisations and 
partnerships  
 

 Alan Gough (Director of Partnerships), Susheel Rao 
(Sustainability Officer) 
 
 
 

 Representatives of the BID and Atria  
 

21 February 13 February  Community Safety 
Partnership 
 
 

 Task group final report 
 

 Review of outside 
organisations and 
partnerships 
 

 Scrutiny business 
 
 

 Liam Fitzgerald (Community Safety Manager) and CSP 
partners 
 
 

 Jodie Kloss (Senior Democratic Services Officer) 
 

13 March 7 March   Council Plan and 
performance update 
(Quarter 3 2023/24) 
 
 

 Performance and 
delivery 
monitoring 
 
 

 Liam Hornsby (Associate Director of Customer and 
Corporate Services, Claire Dow (Intelligence, 
Performance and Improvement Lead) 
 
 

Page 27



December 2023 

 Spotlight on service 
delivery 
 

 Service 
performance 
 

 Associate Director and Service Delivery Leads (TBC) 

 

Other items for longer-term planning: 

 Briefing on the Parking Service and contract (arranged for October 2023) 

 Recruitment and retention at WBC 

 Update on the BID 

 Visit Herts 

 Shared services (St Albans/ Three Rivers) 

 Voluntary Sector Commissioning Framework (End of Year Report – 2022-2023)  

 Neighbourhood Locality Fund process review (2024/25) 

 Review of CCTV service (2024/25) 

 Affinity Water 

 

Page 28


	Agenda
	5 Social Housing Task Group final report
	Appendix 1 Draft task group report

	7 Executive Decision Progress Report
	9 Work Programme

